
 

CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN HALL 

FEBRUARY 10, 2020 

 APPROVED 

 

SELECTBOARD MEMBERS: Chair Matthew Krasnow, Vice Chair Frank Tenney, 

Louise McCarren, Carrie Spear and Fritz Tegatz  

 

ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Town Administrator 

 

OTHERS: VCAM, Peter Joslin, Rich Ahrens, Joanne Phelps, Rayne Herzog, John 

Quinney, Sam Carlson, Mike Russell, Mike Yantachka, Dave Marshall, Wiley Reading, 

Willey Tobin, Chris Davis, David Cone, Barbara Collins, Julian Kulski, Bill Agnew, 

Jenny Cole, Bill Stuono, Margaret Woodruff, Bill Frasier Harris, Ruah Swennerfelt, 

Rebecca Foster, Kevin Burget, Steven Wisbaum, Hugh Lewis, Jr., Catherine Bock, 

Wolfger Schneider, Judy Hill, Colleen Armstrong, Meg Berlin, Erich Finley, Barbara 

Collins, Bill Pence, Greg Smith, Jeff Giknis, Susan Smith, Craig Reynolds, Vanessa 

Knowles, Dale Knowles, Adam Dantzscher, Mike Russell, Peter Richardson, Nancy 

Richardson, Cathy Hunter, Louis Cox, Deirdre Holmes, Jacob Edgar, Raven Davis 

 

AGENDA ITEMS: 

5:30 PM Daniel Morgan—six-month performance review (executive session) 

6:00 PM Adjustments to the agenda 

6:01 PM Joint meeting with the Recreation Commission regarding respective roles of the 

Commission and Director  

6:55 PM Willie Tobin—interview for vacancy on Conservation Commission for term 

ending April 30, 2023 

7:00 PM Public Comment 

7:05 PM Consideration of revised Net Metering Agreement to provide electricity credits 

from the Vernon West Road II GLC Solar LLC project to Town buildings and the 

fire/rescue station 

7:30 PM Request for BidsMowing and Maintenance of CemeteriesMowing, Land 

Maintenance and Brush-hogging of Town lands 

7:45 PM License Agreements for utilities crossing under Town highways: Jonathan and 

Erika Bearman at 1576 Lake Road 

7:50 PM Appoint Fritz Tegatz as volunteer Clerk of the Works for the Library Addition 

7:55 PM Certificate of Highway Mileage 

8:00 PM Town Meeting presentations 

8:10 PM Update on Agreement with CVSD regarding security 

8:25 PM Employee performance reviews—discussion of timing, procedure & format 

8:40 PM Change date of Selectboard’s 2nd meeting in February 

8:45 PM Minutes: January 27, 2020 

8:50 PM Selectboard updatesCharlotte SolarProhibition of firearms in the Charlotte 

Park & Wildlife Refuge 

8:55 PM Approve warrants to pay bills  



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 2 

9:00 PM Adjournment 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Matthew Krasnow called the meeting to order at 5:41 p.m. 

 

Daniel Morgan—six-month performance review (executive session) 

 

MOTION by Frank Tenney, seconded by Louise McCarren, to enter into Executive 

Session. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

MOTION by Carrie Spear, seconded by Frank Tenney, to exit Executive Session. 

VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Adjustments to the agenda 

 

Joint meeting with the Recreation Commission regarding respective roles of the 

Commission and Director  

Matt said this joint meeting was designed to define how to adapt the role of the 

Recreation Commission to be its most productive in working with the Recreation 

Director since that position’s responsibilities and authority have changed from the 

Recreation Coordinator title. Craig Reynolds spoke of having more and consistent 

interaction with the director and he spoke of the diverse expertise and longevity the 

commission brings. Greg Smith said volunteers deserve interaction and respect and a 

professional relationship with the director. Bill Frasier Harris said when the position was 

changed from coordinator to director, the commission was not consulted nor had any part 

in the change. He said in the past the commission was engaged in the review process and 

the hiring process and now this has been sidelined. The commission was always involved 

or consulted in hiring the beach attendants and now they are not. A common theme with 

the commissioners who spoke was that there was not much correspondence with the 

director and no clarity on how the relationship is supposed to work. They feel that the 

director should be present at all of their meetings. Judy Hill said it is helpful to have 

regular email updates and that face to face interaction is helpful. Bill said he would like 

this to be resolved by a boost in communication, perhaps a weekly meeting with Nicole.  

 

Matt Krasnow said the Selectboard has been working with Recreation Commission 

Chairman Bill Fraser Harris and the Recreation Director Nicole Conley on a new format 

for working together and on a defined mission statement. This will allow for more clarity 

on how the director and the commissioners work together. Matt spoke of Open Meeting 

Laws and the efficiency of having a director at Town Hall every day of the week to make 

executive decisions is valuable. He suggested a higher frequency of commission meetings 

that comply with Open Meeting Laws.  

 

Greg Smith said there is a tremendous amount of work done in Town by the volunteers 

on the commission. He suggested the issue stems from the tension in Town Hall and the 

lack of communication that is apparent within its walls. He said that the Recreation 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 3 

Director should be working with the Town Administrator or at least meeting with the 

Town Administrator regularly. He said communication is key.   

 

Matt said he hopes everyone on the commission feels comfortable to call Nicole if they 

need to. Bill serves as the liaison right now between the commission and the director.  

 

Nicole expressed frustration and explained how her new job description was laid out and 

that it indicates meeting with the commission quarterly. She said that when commission 

meetings are changed at the last minute, it is hard for her to change her schedule quickly. 

She said she works with her supervisor and Bill as best as she can to do what is best for 

the Town every day. She said she has always urged everyone to email her or contact her 

with concerns. She said she didn’t create the job description and that it is important to 

know that there is a level of disrespect she is experiencing as a result of ongoing 

miscommunication. She said she would like to work together as the director and 

commission and if there is an issue, she would like to be present to address it.  

 

Matt said there is a limit to what can be discussed because he cannot address personnel 

issues but he offered that a Selectboard did create her position. He applauded the work 

Nicole is handling and how she is adapting to her new role and responsibilities. He said 

the intent of this meeting was to find a way to create a better working relationship 

between the director and the commission. He said there is more collaborative work to do 

to define the roles and responsibilities of the commissioners and to build a mission 

statement. Fritz Tegatz confirmed that there was no contact with the commission and the 

Selectboard at the time when the new position was created.  

 

Fritz also offered that paid employees often want to meet during the workday and during 

business hours whereas volunteer commissioners might want to meet in the evenings 

after their workday. He suggested this could be part of the ongoing issue. The way paid 

employees manage their time and Town volunteers manage their time is very different, he 

said.    

 

Matt said this will be an iterative process. It was suggested that Bill reach out to Nicole 

first when scheduling meetings to be set the second Tuesday of every month. Matt asked 

Dean to loop him in on the meeting emails to go over the ins and outs of the Open 

Meeting Laws.  

 

Bill spoke of the optimism of the commission of the last 30 years and how he would like 

to bring back a functional relationship with the director and to make it fun again.  

 

Willie Tobin—interview for vacancy on Conservation Commission for term ending 

April 30, 2023 

 

MOTION by Fritz Tegatz, seconded by Matt Krasnow, to approve Willie Tobin to 

fill the vacancy on the Conservation Commission for term ending April 30, 2023. 

VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 4 

Public Comment 

None.  

 

Consideration of revised Net Metering Agreement to provide electricity credits from 

the Vernon West Road II GLC Solar LLC project to Town buildings and the 

fire/rescue station 

Fritz said he was surprised to see this item on the agenda since it was voted down in the 

last meeting. He said he made that motion and voted for it and then explained the original 

RFP that was sent out was for solar panels on the roof of the library with the caveat of a 

larger opportunity for net metering.  

 

John Quinney said there were two companies who responded to that original RFP and the 

Town selected Green Lantern. Installing solar panels ended up not working out because 

of the Fire Marshall’s restrictions. John said this was when the Energy Committee 

switched gears to a net metering agreement for the whole Town. The initial focus was 

just on the library.  

 

Fritz said since this was voted down the Selectboard would like to put out a new RFP to 

companies who deal with net metering credits. This is a different project now, he said.   

 

Sam Carlson from Green Lantern said the original RFP he received was a request for two 

proposals. It was the solar array at no cost to the Town and the net metering agreement 

associate with that, he said. Two net metering agreements for that RFP were submitted 

from Green Lantern. One was for the library to cover costs for installing the array and 

one was for the net metering agreement for the other Town offices.  

 

Sam said he was back for this meeting, with the Energy Committee, to negotiate the net 

metering agreement with the changes the Selectboard wanted to see expressed in the last 

meeting. He said he sent Dean a revised net metering agreement. Green Lantern tried to 

improve the terms being offered to the Town from taking the feedback they received two 

weeks ago, Sam said.  

 

Matt said this type of negotiation is not specified in the Town’s purchasing policy and 

that he is considering the revised net metering agreement an unsolicited proposal. He has 

also received another unsolicited proposal from another company since the last 

Selectboard meeting which further complicates the matter. He said the prudent thing to 

do is to put our a fresh RFP next Monday. He said municipalities have strict policies to 

adhere to and it is his responsibility to see that things are handled professionally. He said 

what is most judicious at this time is for the Town to follow their purchasing policy.  

 

Ruah Swennerfelt asked for the Selectboard to all agree that they are dedicated to getting 

the Town on board with net metering. Louise said her focus is on her fiduciary 

responsibilities for the Town. Matt said he is committed. Frank said the Selectboard’s 

mission is in line with the Town Plan where solar sites are discussed but not necessarily 

net metering agreements. Ruah said net metering agreements come with any solar that is 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 5 

installed. Fritz said a grid-tie system is a different system and that net metering is buying 

someone else’s extra solar.  

 

Sam from Green Lantern said the array in Vernon that the Town’s net metering 

agreement would be tied to is a 500 kW array. This is a $1.5 million investment for 

Green Lantern. He spoke of permitting and financing and a certificate of public good. He 

has executed land lease agreements. Vermont Economic Development Authority and tax 

equity investors are involved. It is a capital stack, he said, that involves Towns, schools, 

and private companies like Sugarbush. Green Lantern has 35 net metering agreements 

with towns and schools around the state who are all on board with helping the State and 

GMP meet their renewable goals. He said there is a great demand for these net metering 

agreements right now and if Charlotte doesn’t tie in that this will easily go to another 

town.  

 

Nancy Richardson said the Town needs to move into the 21st century. She wanted the 

Selectboard to convince her that they all are on board with the Town Plan. Fritz said the 

purchasing policy needs to be followed. He said the Selectboard has an obligation to 

investigate the best net metering agreements for the Town.  

 

Matt said he has two unsolicited proposals and because of the way this process has gone 

with no affirmative decision on either portion of Green Lanterns proposal, this leads to 

concern for the process. He would like to see this go out as an RFP strictly for net 

metering, given the reservations the Selectboard had. 

 

Carrie Spear said four months is not enough time to discern what is right for the Town 

and a 20 year commitment. And that she had received the 20 page contract two hours 

before the last meeting when there was a vote. She said the process doesn’t have to take 

forever, but it still takes time, and shouldn’t be rushed through without policy 

considerations.  

 

Bill Stuono said it is important to note that net metering involves tax dollars. This Green 

Lantern project is in Vernon. He said to keep tax dollars local and if the decision is to 

subsidizing solar, keep it in Town.   

 

A rebuttal to Bill’s concerns were handed out by John Quinney. Sam said the spirit of net 

metering in Vermont is that it is legislated to be virtual net metering. It can be anywhere 

in the state and any GMP customer can use credits to reduce their bill.  

 

Mike Yantachka said there needs to be a real strong commitment from the Selectboard to 

do something that brings renewable energy to Charlotte. This is the future of our planet, 

he said. Louise said she has an overriding fiduciary obligation to the Town, to every 

member of the Town. It has to be a decent deal and done according to policy, she said.  

 

Fritz said he is not sure the only option is net metering and he would like other options 

explored. Matt said one of the major sticking point is the time commitment and the 

opportunity loss that might come ten years from now. The Town is looking for the option 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 6 

to increase and decrease at will, an opportunity to pivot if better opportunities arise, he 

said.    

 

Mike Yantachka agreed the Town should put out a new RFP. Net metering works 

because not everyone can build a solar array, he said. Charlotte needs to help the State 

transition to renewable energy. This will save money for the Town, he said. He urged the 

Selectboard to lock in a rate now to save money and to stop contributing to the purchase 

of fossil fuels.  

 

Juliann Phelps asked about conflicts of interest. Matt said no one to date has offered that 

information. Rebecca Foster said there is no one on the Energy Committee that has a 

conflict. 

 

Bill Stuono asked the Selectboard to remember that conflict of interest also includes 

friends and associates with monetary ties to the project. Bill also said the legislature is 

trying to change net metering laws at this time and to be aware of these changes.  

 

John Quinney said the Town purchasing policy allows the Selectboard to make a decision 

on the revised proposal he and the Energy Committee has worked on since the last 

meeting. Matt said another unsolicited proposal has been submitted and he would like to 

appropriately evaluate this for the Town since, as Sam said, net metering is highly 

competitive right now. The preference for the Selectboard is to put out a specific RFP for 

net metering with a quick turn around.  

 

Peter Richardson wanted an explicit endorsement for net metering from the Selectboard. 

Marty Illick said the Town has been negotiating with Green Lantern in good faith and to 

end that and start all over again was concerning. Matt said he was looking to find enough 

votes. The original RFP failed two weeks ago, and a renegotiation offer after a public 

vote is not a way to do this. Matt said it gets messy if you start negotiating with a 

different option than what the proposal was and it is not a good precedent to set.  

 

Jacob Edgar said net metering will save money for the Town.  

 

Louise said finding an option that carries out her fiduciary responsibilities and limits 

regulatory and technology risks is her focus.  

 

Marty Illick said that the revised net metering agreement was given to the Selectboard on 

Jan 29. Marty asked if Matt would comment on the revised agreement. Frank said it 

becomes a moot point if they are putting out an RFP. He asked to hold consideration until 

this goes through the RFP process.  

 

MOTION by Matt Krasnow, seconded by Fritz Tegatz, to draft an RFP for a net 

metering agreement for the Town of Charlotte with the help of the Energy 

Committee. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Request for Bids 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 7 

Mowing and Maintenance of Cemeteries 

Mowing, Land Maintenance and Brush-hogging of Town lands 

 

Dean discussed the changes to be made to the request for bids. Frank requested maps. 

Frank said it might be better to have a single bid for all of the mowing. The language was 

clarified. Each item and each location was discussed. Sue Smith offered specifics about 

how it was all handled last year. One contract is preferred. Bids will be opened on March 

16 and a comparison will be put together for the March 31 meeting.  

 

MOTION by Frank Tenney, seconded by Louise McCarren, to approve the release 

all three bids for the mowing and maintenance of the cemetery, mowing and land 

maintenance, and brush hogging of Town lands. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion 

carried. 

 

License Agreements for utilities crossing under Town highways:  

Jonathan and Erika Bearman at 1576 Lake Road 

 

MOTION by Fritz Tegatz, seconded by Louise McCarren, to approve the License 

Agreements for utilities crossing under Town highways for Jonathan and Erika 

Bearman at 1576 Lake Road with permission for the Chair to sign. VOTE: 5 ayes; 

all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Appoint Fritz Tegatz as volunteer Clerk of the Works for the Library Addition 

 

MOTION by Frank Tenney, seconded by Matt Krasnow, to appoint Fritz Tegatz as 

volunteer Clerk of the Works for the Library Addition with Carrie Spear to 

supervise. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Certificate of Highway Mileage 

No changes.  

 

MOTION by Fritz Tegatz, seconded by Matt Krasnow, to approve the Certificate of 

Highway Mileage as is. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Town Meeting presentations 

To happen next Monday 

 

Update on Agreement with CVSD regarding security 

Matt provided an update on the  security request from the school. Security personnel will 

be unarmed.  There will be a splitting up of categories for elections to include 300 or less, 

and 150 or less. Minor and major elections will be spelled out.  

 

Employee performance reviews—discussion of timing, procedure & format 

Dean said the most recent process description, from 2018, is in the packet. The 

Selectboard changed some language and columns on the document. New employee 



SELECTBOARD                  02/10/2020 PAGE 8 

names were added. The updated process description will be put on a future Selectboard 

agenda for final approval. 

 

Change date of Selectboard’s 2nd meeting in February 

The next meeting will be Feb. 17.  

 

Minutes: January 27, 2020 

 

MOTION by Frank Tenney, seconded by Fritz Tegatz, to approve the Selectboard 

meeting minutes from Jan. 27, 2020 as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion 

carried. 

 

Selectboard updates 

Charlotte Solar 

Louise said she is waiting for calls to be returned to her.  

 

Prohibition of firearms in the Charlotte Park & Wildlife Refuge 

The Town Attorney agrees that the Town ordinance is in conflict with state statute that 

that the ordinance and signage should be amended.  

 

RFP for the bridge repair 

More discussion with FEMA need to be had and Dean is reaching out for more 

information.  

 

Advertising appointed positions with a stipend 

The draft Notice of Vacancies and Expiring Terms was circulated to Selectboard 

members, and the positions were discussed. It was decided by consensus that positions 

paid by stipend are not to be advertised if the incumbent wants to be reappointed.  

 

Adjournment 

 

MOTION by Fritz Tegatz, seconded by Carrie Spear, to adjourn at 9:50 pm. 

VOTE: 5 ayes; all in favor; motion carried. 

 

Minutes respectfully submitted, Lynn Monty, Recording Secretary. 


